

# Milestone 6.1: ACTRIS User experience map

Authors: <u>Rosa M. Petracca Altieri</u>, Carmela Cornacchia, Giuseppe Gargano Simone Gagliardi, Sabine Philippin, Elke Ludewig, Ariane Dubost, Ulla Wandinger, Amalia Muñoz, Mila Ródenas.

Work package no	WP6	
Milestone no.	MS6.1	
Lead beneficiary	CNR	
Deliverable type	X R (Document, report)	
	DEC (Websites, patent filings, videos, etc.)	
	OTHER: please specify	
Dissemination level	X PU (public)	
	CO (confidential, only for members of the Consortium, incl. Commission)	
Estimated delivery date	M6	
Actual delivery date	09/04/2021	
Version	Final	
Reviewed by	WP6 partners	
	ACTRIS Head Office	
	Interim RI Committee	
Accepted by		
Comments	Contents were shared with the ACTRIS community during the 2021 Spring ACTRIS IMP Meeting, March 30 <sup>th</sup> 2021.	

# Contents

1	About this document	4
2	Glossary	4
3	User experience defined	6
4	Purpose of the User experience map	7
5	ACTRIS UX Mapping process and timeline	8
6	ACTRIS User Experience Survey results	10
6.1	User perspective of the physical and remote access experience	11
6.2	Provider perspective of the access experience	17
7	Current user experience of access	23
8	ACTRIS User experience map (future state)	27
9	Recommendations and next steps	. 30
10	Reference documents	31

# List of Figures

Figure 1. User engagement cycle	8
Figure 2. ACTRIS User experience timeline	9
Figure 3. Main modalities of access organization	.11
Figure 4. How users actually got access to ACTRIS facilities	.12
Figure 5. Problems experienced with access to ACTRIS Facilities	. 13
Figure 6. Awareness of access to services	.14
Figure 7. User opinions on the ease of access procedure	.14
Figure 8. Main reasons for pain-free access	
Figure 9. Main reasons for difficult access	.15
Figure 10. Assistance received	.16
Figure 11. User evaluations of the access experience	.16
Figure 12. User suggestions of possible improvements	.17
Figure 13. Main modalities of access organization (provider perspective)	.18
Figure 14. Issues experienced by access providers	.19
Figure 15. Assistance received as access provider	.20
Figure 16. Provider opinions on the ease of access procedure	.21
Figure 17. Main reasons for pain-free access (provider perspective)	.21
Figure 18. Main reasons for difficult access (provider perspective)	.22

#### ACTRIS IMP

# WP6 / Milestone 6.1

Figure 19. Provider evaluations of the access experience	22
Figure 20. Provider suggestions of possible improvements	23
Figure 21. Map of the current experience of access to ACTRIS services	26
Figure 22. Map of the future experience of access to ACTRIS services	29

## **1** About this document

This document contains the ACTRIS User experience map, which is the representation (also visual) of the main interactions between ACTRIS and its users regarding physical and remote access to services. It describes in detail all activities involved in preparing both the map of current interactions and that of future interactions, the latter depicting plans for improvements to be introduced to facilitate and make the interactions more fluid by removing current pain points.

The document was prepared in the context of the activities of the ACTRIS IMP (Aerosols, Clouds and Trace Gases Research Infrastructure Implementation Project). The ACTRIS IMP is meant to take ACTRIS into a new level of maturity supporting the implementation of the organizational, operational and strategic frameworks of the RI. In particular, Work Package 6, which is coordinated by the CNR, deals with the implementation of the system of access to the ACTRIS Central and National Facilities and to the available services, following a user-centric approach coherent with the ACTRIS technical capability and mission.

The document is structured in 10 different sections. After this introductory Section 1, Section 2 includes the glossary of main terms related to the user experience (UX) to facilitate reading and jargon understanding by non-experts in product/service development and UX. Section 3 provides a definition the user experience, what it is and what it is for, along with an overview of the main evolutions of its use. Section 4 clarifies the purposes for the user experience map, and Section 5 describes how it was developed for ACTRIS. Section 6 provides the results of the analysis carried out to cast light on the current experience of access from a user/provider point of view. Section 7 presents the current user experience of physical and remote access to ACTRIS resulting from the user research carried out. Section 8 illustrates the future, planned ACTRIS-Users interactions for the physical and remote access to services, with related recommendations and proposals for future action in Section 9. Finally, Section 10 provides the list of references consulted.

# 2 Glossary

### Channel

Any medium of interaction/communication with users (print, the web, mobile, voice calls, meetings, etc.).

### **Design Thinking**

Design Thinking is a human-centered approach to innovation that draws from the designer's toolkit to integrate the needs of people, the possibilities of technology and the requirements for business success.

ACTRIS IMP WP6 / Milestone 6.1

#### **Experience design**

Experience design is the practice of designing products, processes, services, events and environments with a focus on the quality of the user's experience, particularly the level of engagement and satisfaction that the user derives from a product or service while it addresses their needs and context.

#### Journey map

A journey map is a visualization of the process that a person goes through in order to accomplish a goal and find a desirable solution (product, service, process) to a need. It helps think through and strategize about key moments of different stakeholders as they experience a solution.

#### **Pain Point**

A persistent or recurring source of trouble, annoyance or distress (as with a service or product) that frequently inconveniences or annoys users/customers.

#### Service design

Service design involves the activity of planning and organizing people, infrastructure, communications and material components of a service in order to improve its quality and the interaction between providers and customers.

#### Takeaways

Key findings from the experience mapping process, which are the basis for developing recommendations.

#### Touchpoint

A touchpoint is any point of contact/interaction between a user and the provider of a solution (e.g. product / service / program / system).

#### **User-Centered Design**

UCD is a product/service development approach that focuses on end users. The philosophy is that the service/product should suit the user, rather than making the user suit the service/product. This is accomplished by employing a variety of research and design techniques, to create highly usable and accessible service/products for them.

#### **User experience**

All aspects of the user's interaction with an organization/company, its services and its products.

#### **User requirements**

Needs, demands and expectations of the users, with details of the features/attributes a product/service should have or how it should perform from the users' perspective.

# 3 User experience defined

User experience, commonly referred to as UX, is the complex of a person's perceptions and responses that result from using a service, product or system. In other words, it is the consequence of everything a person encounters and experiences during an event (access, for example), which produces a reaction and leaves an impression on that person.

The User Experience Professionals Association (UXPA) defines user experience as "Every aspect of the user's interaction with a product, service, or company that make up the user's perceptions of the whole". The quality of the interaction (good, smooth, etc.), the perceptions of utility, ease of use and efficiency, and mostly the overall satisfaction that a person experiences with a service/product/organization are the UX main factors. Also, it is a consequence of functionality, performance and assistive capabilities of a system, service or product.

The user experience regards all types of products and services, though in the past it has been commonly used in relation to interactive systems, like web applications, other software applications and websites. The ISO 9241-210:2019 standard on the Ergonomics of human-system interaction — Part 210: Human-centred design for interactive systems considers the user experience as a crucial element of the human-centred design, an approach to plan and develop systems meant to make them usable and useful by focusing on the users.

However, the user experience has evolved a lot since its first formulation and is growingly transcending this original domain to involve every kind and type of interaction. It goes from the single product to the overall relation of a user with a company, institution and organization. The user experience has become a central concept of Design Thinking, a more general method used for designing practical and creative solutions to problems in a highly user-centric way, building on and promoting user engagement.

As the name suggests, Design Thinking draws from methods and processes used by designers, but it is applied to a vast range of different fields — starting with architecture and engineering, of course, but now definitely business, culture<sup>1</sup>, society and science too. Design Thinking is used in all these sectors to stimulate innovations deriving from creative and original solutions that are looked for and designed engaging and collaborating with users, building on their perspective.

Design Thinking and UX are used by an increasing number of R&D organizations, especially in the life science sector and in the production of scientific software<sup>2</sup>. There is even a call to brushing up scientific papers and conferences with the UX [Ref. 18]. But even without going that far, there is a well-documented and studied propensity to apply Design Thinking and UX to education and training to improve research and performances in these fields through user engagement [Ref. 11]. Higher education institutions are

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> For example for museum exhibitions and museum technologies, see Ref. 15, Ref. 16, and Ref. 17.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> See the UXLS (User Experience in Life Science) community supported by the Pistoia alliance, a global, not-for-profit members' organization established in 2009 by representatives of AstraZeneca, GSK, Novartis and Pfizer to promote projects that generate value for the worldwide life sciences community. <u>https://uxls.org/</u>

ACTRIS IMP (<u>www.actris.eu</u>) is supported by the European Commission under the Horizon 2020 – Research and Innovation Framework Programme, H2020-INFRADEV-2019-2, Grant Agreement number: 871115

progressively assigning Design Thinking a role in identifying new approaches to teaching/learning and delivering educational services<sup>3</sup>.

Design Thinking fosters the innovation of services, products and processes through user experience and user engagement. Innovation results from a deep understanding of the users, their needs and problems, with solutions found together in an iterative process that makes both organizations and users evolve. As such it can be strategically applied also to the design of access services and research services.

Here, considering the RI's mission and the user-oriented approach affirmed in the ACTRIS user strategy, it is applied to the design of the ACTRIS process for physical and remote access.

### 4 Purpose of the User experience map

The user experience map is a Design Thinking tool to understand the users and enable innovation of services, processes and interactions by taking the user perspective. The map is useful to plan the interaction/experience with the user starting from the current situation and modelling new different steps for an improved and more satisfying experience.

Here it is used to serve the following purposes:

- to support the organization and management of the physical and remote access to ACTRIS services, helping to evolve the current processes by:
  - enabling a better, also visual, understanding of what currently happens so to highlight what works and what doesn't;
  - using user inputs and feedback to create a future state experience map to generate ideas and plan an improved process;
  - o producing recommendations and a clear roadmap for implementing the needed changes;
- to follow up and substantiate ACTRIS user-centric approach;
- to promote and concretely pursue user engagement.

The map is particularly useful for ACTRIS during this implementation phase, to support the current transition from project-based access to ACTRIS facilities and services to the coordinated legal-entity-based RI access provision, promoting user trust and increasing user awareness.

Providing sound RI's governed access services can be challenging. A user experience map can be a useful starting point to tackle this challenge in the best possible way. The map shows the sequence of various steps starting from the user's necessity to satisfy a need with a service, up to its use. It enables

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> See the Erasmus+ research project D-Think - Design Thinking applied in Education and Training, aimed to promote the application of Design Thinking as a framework to innovate HEI (Higher Education Institutions) and VET (vocational education training , Ref. 9.

ACTRIS IMP (<u>www.actris.eu</u>) is supported by the European Commission under the Horizon 2020 – Research and Innovation Framework Programme, H2020-INFRADEV-2019-2, Grant Agreement number: 871115

understanding user needs, comprehensively examine user interactions, iterate to find solutions and design satisfying processes.

Also, it is used as a key tool and step in the user engagement, understood and figured out a cyclic process to promote and maintain user interest, satisfaction and commitment.



Figure 1. User engagement cycle

# 5 ACTRIS UX Mapping process and timeline

Building the ACTRIS user experience map implies a good understanding of ACTRIS users, what they need and what they value, as a way to prepare the design of the ideal experience of receiving physical and remote access to ACTRIS services.

The process for mapping the ACTRIS user experience followed the main steps of a standard development process, placing users at the core of analysis and developments. It is illustrated in **Figure 2**, which also provides the timeline for the map preparation.

#### WP6 / Milestone 6.1

#### **ACTRIS User experience process**



Figure 2. ACTRIS User experience timeline

The first step of the process focused on the collection of information on users' experiences. That was done taking advantage of the survey launched in November 2020 to investigate the user needs and get inputs and feedbacks for future service and processes development.

The map design stage was based on the collected information, combining existing knowledge and new research on the users. All pieces of information were arranged and organized to figure out the user journey and to process the map.

The mapping exercise was then circulated internally for information, acknowledgment and feedback, to be presented to the wider ACTRIS community during the Spring Community meeting.

The following steps include testing the designed access process with users. That will happen hopefully with the 2<sup>nd</sup> and 3<sup>rd</sup> TNA call planned during the IMP project.

Tests will enable us to learn from user feedback during TNA pilots and validate the suitable access process. The process is iterative and always open to further improvements during operations.

ACTRIS IMP (<u>www.actris.eu</u>) is supported by the European Commission under the Horizon 2020 – Research and Innovation Framework Programme, H2020-INFRADEV-2019-2, Grant Agreement number: 871115

# 6 ACTRIS User Experience Survey results

The ACTRIS User need survey closed at the end of January 2021 and included specific questions related to the access experience. Such questions, reported in **Table 1**, targeted service providers too to get their perspective.

Key questions answered on the access experience				
Only to users	To users and providers			
How was the access organized?				
• What's the most problematic and hard part about your experience of access to Facilities? (open text)				
• Please describe how you got access to facilities (sequence of main steps in the process, e.g. answer to a call, suggestion by acquaintances and/or colleagues, etc.) (open text)				
• Overall, how easy or difficult did you find the procedure to get access to facilities and services? (extremely difficult, somewhat difficult, neither difficult nor easy, somewhat easy, extremely easy)				
Why? (Open text)				
• Did you receive proper assistance before, during and after your access experience (application, selection, service fruition,)? Y/N Please comment.	Did you receive proper assistance before, during and after your provider experience (application, selection, service fruition,)?			
How would you describe your overall access experience (extremely satisfactory, somewhat satisfactory, neutral, somewhat poor, extremely poor)?				
What would you suggest as possible improvements?				
Table 1. Specific questions related to the access experience as user/provider of ACTRIS services in th				

ACTRIS user needs survey.

A total of 103 users took the survey, which was structured with branching logic to automatically send different respondents to different branches, where they only answered relevant questions according to previous responses to specific questions. Based on the respondents' characteristics (user or provider, new or experienced), a total of **40 users** and **23 providers** reached the access experience section of the survey.

ACTRIS IMP (<u>www.actris.eu</u>) is supported by the European Commission under the Horizon 2020 – Research and Innovation Framework Programme, H2020-INFRADEV-2019-2, Grant Agreement number: 871115

### 6.1 User perspective of the physical and remote access experience

The following graphs result from analysis of the users' answers to questions in the access experience section of the survey. Not all users answered to all questions in the section (with answers to single questions ranging from 21 to 40), so the reported rates just reflect the percentage of answers to the specific question they refer to. Furthermore, it is important to highlight that the percentage of respondents is only a very small fraction of the nearly 1000 users in past access experiences<sup>4</sup>.

Although not statistically representative, the received replies are helpful and provide some user views on the process to get access to the ACTRIS facilities as well as on how respondents evaluate the experience.



Figure 3. Main modalities of access organization

As the graph in **Figure 3** above shows, access to ACTRIS facilities was mainly organized and provided in the frame of national or EU-funded access programs. It is worth keeping this in mind as, chances are, most pain points highlighted in the answers to the survey may refer to Trans National Access (TNA) rules, requirements and procedures.

It is also interesting to note the prevalence of "informal" channels and contacts (word of mouth, phone calls, direct exchanges at meetings and conferences) in arranging access, as reported in **Figure 4Error! Reference source not found.**. This is natural and characteristic of all past accesses, long before the

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> Within the ACTRIS-2 (Aerosols, Clouds, and Trace gases Research InfraStructure) project, 371 users accessed 18 observational platforms and 734 calibrations were performed via TransNational Access (TNA) in the 2015-2019 period. In the frame of the EUROCHAMP2020 (Integration of European Simulation Chambers for Investigating Atmospheric Processes – Towards 2020 and beyond) project 183 users had access to 17 exploratory platforms via TNAs in the period 2017-2019.

ACTRIS IMP (<u>www.actris.eu</u>) is supported by the European Commission under the Horizon 2020 – Research and Innovation Framework Programme, H2020-INFRADEV-2019-2, Grant Agreement number: 871115

#### ACTRIS IMP

#### WP6 / Milestone 6.1

introduction of access programs, and has continued to be relevant with many accesses taking place in the context of existing collaborations between research groups. At the same time, it confirms the opportunity to continue to strengthen the official channels too, to attract new users and increase the ACTRIS user base.



Figure 4. How users actually got access to ACTRIS facilities

No major problems in the access experience were reported by the majority of respondents, with some indicating paperwork and reporting duties, along with information and funding as issues when accessing the ACTRIS facilities, as shown in **Figure 5** and **Figure 9**.



Figure 5. Problems experienced with access to ACTRIS Facilities

It is worth noting here that some users reported as annoying the need to undergo official applications and official contracting for recurrent activities such as calibrations and technical services. As previously mentioned, this seems connected to the fact that provision of access to technical services mostly happened in the frame of TNA schemes in EU-funded projects. It will be taken into account as input for the design of the process for access supported outside TNAs schemes. Furthermore, this comment underlines the need to better communicate to the users the value of the opportunities they are given, also in monetary terms, and the additional burden of fulfilling the paperwork that is necessary to cover the costs of their access.

Another interesting comment reported uneasy coordination with local users of the facilities. This, too, appears to be worth consideration in the map design stage, to guarantee a better information about the availability of resources and a better coordination during the access.

Finally, in some cases, users found it difficult getting to know about the opportunities of access. This highlights some communication issues that seem confirmed by a 28% of answers to the question "are there services you need but don't know how to access" (Figure 6) and the suggestion to improve communication also outside Europe, among others in Figure 12Error! Reference source not found. which reports all the improvements suggested by respondents, grouped by category.

ACTRIS IMP (www.actris.eu) is supported by the European Commission under the Horizon 2020 – Research and Innovation Framework Programme, H2020-INFRADEV-2019-2, Grant Agreement number: 871115



Figure 6. Awareness of access to services

Users mostly found the procedure to gain access easy (55%), with only 7% considering it somewhat difficult, as shown in **Figure 7**.



Figure 7. User opinions on the ease of access procedure

The access procedure was easy, painless mainly thanks to the valuable support received from organizers (coordinators of the access program) and service providers as reported in **Figure 8**. The 87,5% of respondents experienced such support, with proper assistance before, during and after access (**Figure 10**). **Figure 9** illustrates the main reasons reported by those who found difficult the procedure to gain access.



Figure 8. Main reasons for pain-free access



Figure 9. Main reasons for difficult access

ACTRIS IMP (<u>www.actris.eu</u>) is supported by the European Commission under the Horizon 2020 – Research and Innovation Framework Programme, H2020-INFRADEV-2019-2, Grant Agreement number: 871115



Figure 10. Assistance received

Overall, the current experience of accessing ACTRIS facilities received very positive evaluations (**Figure 11**). It is important to note that no one marked as poor the access experience and it is certainly a very good result.



Figure 11. User evaluations of the access experience

ACTRIS IMP (www.actris.eu) is supported by the European Commission under the Horizon 2020 – Research and Innovation Framework Programme, H2020-INFRADEV-2019-2, Grant Agreement number: 871115

Some areas for improvements were identified, though. Among these, recapped in **Figure 12**, simplification, removal of some TNA constraints (restriction on the Country combination, flexibility to use Airbnb<sup>5</sup>, etc.) and communication.



Figure 12. User suggestions of possible improvements

It has to be noted that, for the entire section 6.1, some answers seem to refer more to the service experience in general rather than the experience of obtaining physical and remote access to services. It is the case, for instance, of some reported problems (receiving raw data from the experiments, time to workout data/observations, etc.) or some suggested improvements (upgrading of measuring instrumentation, involvement of more experienced researchers and technicians, motivation for collaborations, more measurements).

These are noted as valuable inputs and insights, to be considered and tackled by the single providers and the wider ACTRIS community as well. They'll be reported for discussion and consideration in the Updated analysis of user needs (MS 35).

### 6.2 Provider perspective of the access experience

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> Under the TNA scheme, some users get support for their travel and subsistence (T&S) expenses, provided that these are in line with the TNA provider's usual practices on travel. The reimbursement is based on the accounting rules of the organisation concerned.

ACTRIS IMP (<u>www.actris.eu</u>) is supported by the European Commission under the Horizon 2020 – Research and Innovation Framework Programme, H2020-INFRADEV-2019-2, Grant Agreement number: 871115

The following graphs summarize outcomes of the analysis of the access providers' experience, based on answers to questions in the access experience section of the survey.

It's important to underline that, same as for users, the 23 providers responding to questions in the access experience section represent a very small portion of all the facilities' staff involved in access provision in past years. Also, not all providers answered all questions, with answers to single questions in the section ranging from 10 to 20. Therefore, the graphs and rates reflect the percentage of answers to the specific questions, are not statistically representative and in no way are intended to represent the experience of the generality of providers.

Nevertheless, answers offer a helpful and useful view of the access process and valuable inputs from the perspective of, at least some, providers.



In most cases the access was directly organized by service providers, as shown in Figure 13.

Figure 13. Main modalities of access organization (provider perspective)

Main issues and pain points experienced by access providers are the need of adequate resources (human resources as well as funds, but also time) to dedicate to taking care of the users and the administrative burdens related to access formalities (**Figure 14**).

#### ACTRIS IMP

#### WP6 / Milestone 6.1



Figure 14. Issues experienced by access providers

It's interesting to remark that the user expectations, especially of private sector users, are reported as troublesome for some providers, and the same also for making physical access attractive for industries and researchers. This surely uncovers a huge need for improvement both in communication, in industrial relations and, not ultimately, in service (for innovation) development.

More centralized guidance on procedures, service development, responsibilities and coordination of access, user attraction is also reported as needed. In connection to that, one of the questions to providers was about the assistance received before, during and after the provider experience, with answers reported in **Figure 15**.



Figure 15. Assistance received as access provider

Being this a yes/no question, one could wonder whether the NO means that the providers needed support but did not receive it or that support may not have been necessary at all. Unfortunately, there is no way to ascertain that apart from coming back to respondents and ask for further clarifications and details. SAMU plans to do that soon with small, tailored surveys in the Science and User Forum and feedback forms in the access management platform.

According to providers, the procedure to provide access to facilities and services was neither difficult nor easy, although some of them found it difficult, as **Figure 16** shows.

#### ACTRIS IMP

#### WP6 / Milestone 6.1



Figure 16. Provider opinions on the ease of access procedure

Access provision appeared rather easy thanks to the perceived adequacy of the TNA process and the absence of many formalities (**Figure 17**), although some respondents had different views and found providing access difficult because of too much paperwork (**Figure 18**). Notably, the absence of an online management system was also perceived as an issue.



Figure 17. Main reasons for pain-free access (provider perspective)

ACTRIS IMP (<u>www.actris.eu</u>) is supported by the European Commission under the Horizon 2020 – Research and Innovation Framework Programme, H2020-INFRADEV-2019-2, Grant Agreement number: 871115



Figure 18. Main reasons for difficult access (provider perspective)

Overall, the current experience of providing access was evaluated very positively (Figure 19).



Figure 19. Provider evaluations of the access experience

Some areas for improvements were identified, including communication, reduction of bureaucracy, more guidelines also for providers, sharing of providers' experiences to learn from each other and, most notably, the opportunity to develop an ACTRIS access program with simpler rules and funding, to be managed online (Figure 20Error! Reference source not found.).



Figure 20. Provider suggestions of possible improvements

Similar to the users' responses, it is to be noted that some providers' answers in the survey refer to aspects and issues that go also beyond the strict experience of the access process. More general scientific, technical and organizational matters are involved and need to be considered and tackled at the wider ACTRIS community level.

## 7 Current user experience of access

Answers from the survey were completed, integrated and balanced with information and testimonies collected with in-house teams' help. Insights and intelligence also resulted from notes taken after exchanges and discussions on access themes during working meetings, workshops and sessions in the ACTRIS community meetings. Combining different sources, leveraging existing knowledge and new research and finally assembling the pieces of information that consider all possible angles, especially the painful, less frequent ones, is recommended in all UX manuals<sup>6</sup> to get the complete picture of the experience studied and to actually identify areas of improvement to work on. This is why the mapping exercise typically focuses on critical points rather than positive, but just to turn the former into opportunities for improvement. This approach is followed also here.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup> See, for instance, Ref. 6 and Ref. 7

ACTRIS IMP (<u>www.actris.eu</u>) is supported by the European Commission under the Horizon 2020 – Research and Innovation Framework Programme, H2020-INFRADEV-2019-2, Grant Agreement number: 871115

#### ACTRIS IMP

#### WP6 / Milestone 6.1

The map of the current experience of physical and remote access to ACTRIS, which resulted from this first attempt at considering access also as an experience, is reported in **Figure 21**.

The map presents the current experience in the 4 main phases of access:

- I. pre-access / awareness;
- II. the access process, meaning the sequence of actions and interactions that happen when the user approaches ACTRIS to request physical or remote access to a service and the request undergoes all steps planned for selection till the final decision;
- III. the service provision, which happens when the user is admitted to a facility and receives the service he/she needs;
- IV. the post-access, with interactions for reporting and collecting user feedback for future improvements.

#### I. <u>Pre-Access/Awareness Phase</u>

At present, the user experience starts in many cases with facilities identifying (summoning, selecting) users to propose access to. This seems to happen sometimes also before the formal, official application under an access programs, as observed and reported by testimonials.

Users are notified of the access opportunity directly by the provider, or thanks to word of mouth of acquaintances and/or colleagues.

This highlights two main quick takeaways in this phase:

- the opportunity to reinforce a uniform, coordinated communication to reach out users and raise their awareness
- the informal channels are especially good to support the official communication channels.

#### II. Access process Phase

The user with a need that can be satisfied by an ACTRIS service comes across multiple different touchpoints represented by different facilities, each with its peculiar access style and sometimes with additional local formalities.

Prior dissemination of access evaluation criteria and grids needs to be reinforced.

Support from providers and access coordinators is relevant to ensure a positive user access experience. Support from the RI as well as exchange of experiences between providers (from those more experienced to the new ones) can be important to ensure a positive access provider experience.

Takeaways in this phase:

- the urge to substitute the multiple initial touchpoints with the ACTRIS single "entry point";
- the chance to design a uniform style for access (the ACTRIS style), as far as possible;

ACTRIS IMP (<u>www.actris.eu</u>) is supported by the European Commission under the Horizon 2020 – Research and Innovation Framework Programme, H2020-INFRADEV-2019-2, Grant Agreement number: 871115

- the opportunity to move to a centralized, more automated access management system;
- the need to increase dissemination and establish common, uniform rules and criteria for different types of selection (scientific merit-based, technical merit-based, market opportunity-based), and to provide a single source of knowledge and truth about access to ACTRIS;
- the need for a sort of training support of the providers in the organization of access.

#### III. Service provision Phase

Once admitted (physically or remotely) at the facility, the user obtains the service he/she requested to satisfy his/her need. Adjusting and coordinating with local users of the facility is sometimes uneasy. Conversely, for the providers, a pain point can be finding the time and human resources to take care adequately of the user during the service provision.

Takeaways of the phase:

- the need to support a better management of the availability of services and resources.
- the opportunity to consider to allow some more time after access to work out data and complete the research. This is a point to be further investigated with the users and with the providers.

#### IV. Post-Access Phase

After the service provision, the user performs reporting duties (if any) and gives feedback on the service, the support received, the suitability of the service to meet his needs. Reporting duties are perceived as time-consuming loads.

Takeaways:

- the opportunity to lighten reporting duties, whenever possible considering all requirements coming from applied/applicable funding
- room for improving and making feedback collection systematic.

ACTRIS IMP (<u>www.actris.eu</u>) is supported by the European Commission under the Horizon 2020 – Research and Innovation Framework Programme, H2020-INFRADEV-2019-2, Grant Agreement number: 871115



Figure 21. Map of the current experience of access to ACTRIS services

# 8 ACTRIS User experience map (future state)

The picture of the current state of the ACTRIS user experience of physical and remote access paved the way to envisioning a possible future, improved state where the experience is enhanced, the number of satisfied users is increased and improvements lead to a convinced engagement of users. In the end, this is what the entire user experience exercise is about: identifying areas of improvements (pain points turned into opportunities), designing an "ideal" experience of accessing ACTRIS services and interacting with the entire RI smoothly and in a highly satisfactory way for all parties involved.

Indeed, considering the access experience from the provider's point of view supports designing helpful and more suitable processes for providers too. The result is that the overall satisfaction and commitment to the RI could be greater and concern many different aspects, embracing almost all of them.

The **Figure 22** below presents an improved, future user experience of physical and remote access, which results from a design effort meant to find and propose possible solutions to the pain points highlighted in the analysis phase, among which:

- i. Continuing to reinforce communication, with the central coordination by the HO that proved to be effective in conveying news about the TNA opportunities in the 1st call (and about the survey) thanks to the organized database of networks and contacts in EU but also at the international level.
- ii. orchestrating touchpoints and channels for interaction, integrating all tools supporting user access to make them work as one whole system,
- iii. designing an ACTRIS access program with uniform style, flexible rules and procedures based on the type of financial coverage available (including TNA funding, user fees, other sources and/or a combination of them).
- iv. shifting to a more automated and simple access procedure whose management is supported by a suitable online platform to consent easy control of it.

As for the current experience, the map here illustrates the possible future experience considering the 4 main phases of access.

### I. <u>Pre-Access/Awareness Phase</u>

With further improvement and orchestration of the communication channels and the messages (with focus on the services more than the modalities of provision, for instance TNA, regular access, etc.), the user experience starts with an attracted, engaged user who decides to get in contact with ACTRIS to find a solution for a need of his.

ACTRIS IMP (www.actris.eu) is supported by the European Commission under the Horizon 2020 – Research and Innovation Framework Programme, H2020-INFRADEV-2019-2, Grant Agreement number: 871115

### II. Access process Phase

At the beginning of the journey to access physically or remotely the service that satisfied its need, the user comes across just one touchpoint, the ACTRIS/SAMU (Service and Access Management Unit), as the single point for physical and remote access. SAMU manages the different channels established for easy interaction with users on different themes (Catalogue of Services, Forum, Service Helpdesk for physical and remote access).

Among these tools, a Knowledge Base integrated with the Forum is an especially relevant solution to ensure transparency and information of users about access. The knowledge base is a searchable record of knowledge that helps users find their way with rules, criteria and procedures. Besides, it acts as a learning tool for new providers offering part of the support they ask for and, coupled with the Forum, the possibility to exchange experiences and doubts with more experienced providers.

Characteristics of the phase:

- single "entry point" to refer to for physical and remote access;
- integrated, coherent user information and support system (Catalogue of Services CoS, Forum and Access Knowledge base, Service helpdesk)
- centralized, more automated access management system (PASS Platform for managing user access to ACTRIS ServiceS);
- lighter procedures for access other than TNAs or access funded on project-base.

### III. Service provision Phase

Physical or remote access to services is provided to users that successfully pass the selection. A better management of the facilities' availabilities and coordination with local users is possibly supported by shared calendar applications and central overview of these by SAMU.

#### IV. Post-Access Phase

Lighter reporting duties whenever possible (except when TNAs are involved), systematic collection of user feedback on the access and the services are the key elements of the phase in the map of the future user experience of access.

ACTRIS IMP (www.actris.eu) is supported by the European Commission under the Horizon 2020 – Research and Innovation Framework Programme, H2020-INFRADEV-2019-2, Grant Agreement number: 871115



Figure 22. Map of the future experience of access to ACTRIS services

### 9 Recommendations and next steps

At the end of the user experience exercise for ACTRIS, some recommendations can be made and addressed to the HO and the whole ACTRIS Community to work in synergy to improve the physical and remote access process and increase the satisfaction of both users and providers. Most recommendations derive from designing the maps, other more general came from the answers in the survey that highlighted aspects and issues that go beyond the strict experience of access, understood as admission to a facility, its resources and services<sup>7</sup>.

In general, almost all of the comments received support and confirm the direction taken for moving from a project-based organization of access to ACTRIS facilities and services to the coordinated ERIC-based RI access provision.

In addition to the enforcement of the single entry point, the introduction of the platform for the central and automated management of the access process and the other tools supporting users, which are ongoing, it can be suggested to:

- a. Continue to reinforce and coordinate central communication, also building on informal channels to support the official communication channels.
- b. Design, as far as possible, a uniform style for access, the ACTRIS style, which balances formal and informal aspects and is based on common rules of conduct as well as common, uniform rules and criteria for different types of selection (scientific merit-based, technical merit-based, market opportunity-based).
- c. Increase dissemination and provide a single source of knowledge and truth (Access Knowledge Base) about access to ACTRIS with all information a user needs to know.
- d. Simplify procedures and requirements for access that is not provided in the frame of EU funded projects (TNA), especially for companies for which, by the way, the market-driven access mode exists.
- e. Simplify and differentiate the access process for recurring technical services (for example customary instrument calibrations provided by the Topical Centres).
- f. Work to harmonize and cut, to the extent possible, the red tape for access at local level. For example harmonizing, whenever possible, the local administrative requirements for hosting access at the different places.
- g. Introduce some training and guidelines to support new providers in the organization of access, also encouraging exchanges of expertise/knowledge with more experienced providers.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>7</sup> As in the European Charter for Access to Research Infrastructures, which defines access as the "legitimate and authorised physical, remote and virtual admission to, interactions with and use of Research Infrastructures and to services offered by Research Infrastructures to Users".

ACTRIS IMP (www.actris.eu) is supported by the European Commission under the Horizon 2020 – Research and Innovation Framework Programme, H2020-INFRADEV-2019-2, Grant Agreement number: 871115

- h. Look for suitable, convenient ways to increase the motivation for collaborations between researchers and with companies.
- i. Continue to ensure that the needed resources, including experienced researchers and technicians, are dedicated to access at the providing facilities.
- j. Since funding is key, work towards stronger and better cooperation with national funding agencies and research institutions. The former could be encouraged to provide funds to researchers who use ACTRIS for their research; the latter could be encouraged to finance their researchers' access to ACTRIS facilities, rather than investing in the creation of their own expensive laboratories and instruments.
- k. Last but not least, use the experience map as a tool and a reference to think about possible improvements and innovations in all the different focus areas. Also, as its nature is not defined and not final but open and dynamic, update and adjust it to fit new visions and plans.

### **10 Reference documents**

- 1. ACTRIS Access and Service Policy (D2.6)
- 2. ACTRIS Data Policy (D2.3)
- 3. ACTRIS IMP Grant Agreement (N° 871115)
- European Charter for Access to Research Infrastructures: Principles and guidelines for access and related services. Publications Office of the European Union, 2015. ISBN: 978-92-79-45600-8, doi: 10.2777/524573, KI-04-15-085-EN-N.
  https://ec.europa.eu/research/infrastructures/pdf/2016 charterforaccessto-ris.pdf
- Brown, T. (2019). Change by Design: How Design Thinking Transforms Organizations and Inspires Innovation, Revised and Updated, HarperBusiness, ISBN: 0061766089, 9780061766084, Available at <u>https://www.harpercollins.com/products/change-by-design-revised-and-updated-timbrown?variant=32207973580834</u>
- Lang J., Howell E. (2017). Researching UX: User Research, SitePoint Pty. Ltd., ISBN 978-0-9953826-3-3 (print), Available at <u>https://www.sitepoint.com/premium/books/researching-ux-user-research/read/1</u>
- Baxter K., Courage C., Caine K. (2015) Understanding Your Users: A Practical Guide to User Research Methods, Morgan Kaufmann - Elsevier Inc., ISBN:978-0-12-800609-2, Available at: <u>https://www.elsevier.com/books/understanding-your-users/baxter/978-0-12-800232-2</u>

ACTRIS IMP (<u>www.actris.eu</u>) is supported by the European Commission under the Horizon 2020 – Research and Innovation Framework Programme, H2020-INFRADEV-2019-2, Grant Agreement number: 871115

- Lemon K., Verhoef P. (2019). Understanding Customer Experience Throughout the Customer Journey, Journal of Marketing: AMA/MSI Special Issue, Vol. 80 (November 2016), 69–96, DOI: 10.1509/jm.15.0420, ISSN: 0022-2429 (print), 1547-7185 (electronic)
- Tschimmel, L., Santos, J., Loyens, D., Jacinto, A., Monteiro, R. & Valença, M. (2015). Research Report D-Think. Design Thinking Applied to Education and Training, ESAD Matosinhos, ISBN: 978-989-8829-03-0 DOI: 10.13140/RG.2.1.1049.0643
- Tschimmel, L., Santos, J., (2018). Design Thinking applied to the Redesign of Business Education. ISPIM Innovation Conference Proceedings, Stockholm, Sweden 17-20 June 2018, Paper available at: <u>https://www.researchgate.net/publication/326446791 Design Thinking applied to the Redesign of Business Education</u>
- 11. Rickinson M., Sebba J., Edwards A. (2011) Improving Research through User Engagement, Routledge - Taylor & Francis Group, ISBN 9780203831304, Available at: <u>Taylor & Francis eBooks</u>
- 12. Heuchert, M. (2019). Conceptual Modeling Meets Customer Journey Mapping: Structuring a Tool for Service Innovation. In *Proceedings of the 21st IEEE Conference on Business Informatics (CBI)*, Moscow, Russia.
- 13. International Organization for Standardization. (2019). *Ergonomics of human-system interaction Part 210: Human-centred design for interactive systems* (ISO Standard No. 9241-210:2019) <u>https://www.iso.org/obp/ui/#iso:std:iso:9241:-210:ed-2:v1:en</u>
- Cham J. A., Costa K. (2017), UX Design Maximising the Value of Scientific Software in Life Science R&D, Drug Discovery World Summer 2017, <u>https://www.ddw-online.com/media/32/(7)-ux-design.pdf</u>.
- 15. Pallud J., Monod E. (2010), User experience of museum technologies: the phenomenological scales, European Journal of Information Systems, 19:5, 562-580, DOI: <u>10.1057/ejis.2010.37</u>
- 16. Solano A. (2018), *UI/UX Case Study: Science Museum* [Online]. UX Collective. Available at: <a href="https://uxdesign.cc/ui-ux-case-study-science-museum-c3fbd37c2fbc">https://uxdesign.cc/ui-ux-case-study-science-museum-c3fbd37c2fbc</a> (Accessed: 12 January 2021)
- 17. Robertson M. (2019), Interactive Curated Tours at Tate Modern: A UX Case Study [Blog], *Prototypr blog.* Available at <u>https://blog.prototypr.io/interactive-curated-tours-at-tate-modern-a-ux-case-study-8f797b38729e</u> (Accessed: 12 January 2021)

ACTRIS IMP (<u>www.actris.eu</u>) is supported by the European Commission under the Horizon 2020 – Research and Innovation Framework Programme, H2020-INFRADEV-2019-2, Grant Agreement number: 871115

 Hughes K. (2020), What can the fields of UI/UX teach scientists? [Blog] *Brushing Up Science*. Available at: <u>https://brushingupscience.com/2020/01/06/what-can-the-fields-of-ui-ux-teach-scientists/</u> (Accessed: 12 January 2021).